
Marinwood Community Services District 

 Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting  

Tuesday June 9, 2015 

Time and Place:  7:30PM Marinwood Community Center classroom. 

Present:   

Board Members: President Tarey Read, Justin Kai, Bill Hansell, Deana Dearborn and Bill Shea.   

Staff:  District Manager Eric Dreikosen, Fire Chief Thomas Roach, Recreation Director Shane DeMarta, Firefighter 

Brandon Selvitella and Administrative Assistant Carolyn Sullivan. 

Park and Recreation Commissioners: Chair Izabela Perry. 

Others Present: Stephen Nestel and Linda Barnello. 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Agenda 

Read moved item I (1) to before Consent Calendar.   

 

New and Other Business 

1. Exploratory Discussion Regarding Marinwood Plaza as Potential Site for Marinwood Community Services 

District Purposes: Kai commented community member Tom Royal had approached the Board a few months 

ago requesting discussion regarding the possibility of the District purchasing the property.  Read stated it 

would require a bond issue and a 2/3 vote by the constituents.  Shea stated the District would be purchasing an 

environmental money pit.  Dearborn agreed with Shea; additionally it is not the nature of the CSD to purchase 

private land and the CSD does not have the money.  Hansell commented he has a folder regarding the Plaza 

that goes back ten years.  The District is not in a position to fully acquire the land.  The property has four 

plots, if Marinwood Market purchases their plot it would make the potential purchase less costly to the 

District.  Hansell noted these are just creative thoughts and all discussion should happen in public.  Read 

commented in her opinion the purchase would be a money pit especially due to the nature of the former dry 

cleaning business.  Kai stated it was his intent to have discussion regarding the topic, but feels that if purchase 

were to occur it would only make sense if the District is the only purchasing party.  Nestel questioned the 

purchase price.  Kai said fully entitled, roughly about 12 million.  Nestel commented Hyott is under order to 

clean up the property, there are concerns regarding contamination at Silveria Ranch as well as Casa 

Marinwood.  A community member commented that the District should keep an open mind; the Government 

has grants to help improve communities; we may be able to build an auditorium or a community garden.  He 

added limited housing may be ok, but this community doesn’t need stack and pack housing.  Read reminded 

the public that any entitlements would be at the County level, not the CSD’s.  Kai commented it is not ideal 

for the District to purchase the property at this time; the current process involving other interested parties will 

likely move faster than we can act as a district, considering we’d have to do a bond purchase through a ballot 

measure.  There are other buyers involved and he feels a better proposal for the land is in the near future.  

Hansell commented if the Hyott’s would like to donate the land to the District it would be considered.   

 

Consent Calendar 

a. Draft Minutes of Regular Meeting of May 12, 2015: No comments. 

b. Draft Minutes of Special Meeting of the Board of May 26, 2015: No comments. 

c. Bills paid Nos. 991-1067: Shea stated he was pleasantly surprised with the low overtime costs.  Roach 

replied with the temporary hire the department is fully staffed.    

M/s Dearborn/ Shea to approve Consent Calendar.  Ayes: Kai, Read, Hansell, Dearborn and Shea.  

Nays: None.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 

Open Time for Items not on Agenda 

Hansell distributed a letter to the Manager, Board and Commissioners with attached spreadsheet.  Hansell read the 

letter aloud. (Please see attached material.)  

Barnello asked the amount of interest the District paid for the dry period loan.  Dreikosen replied net interest is $76.00.   

Barnello asked if Dreikosen had contacted Counsel regarding Brown Act Training.  Dreikosen replied yes and that 

nothing currently scheduled.  They discussed the possibility of county-wide training after the November elections.   

 

Fiscal Matters 

1. FY 14-15 Budget Amendment- Fund transfer of Measure A Funds: Dreikosen stated there is no net 

change to the budget. 

M/s Shea/ Dearborn to approve 14-15 Budget Amendment- Fund transfer of Measure A Funds.  

Ayes: Kai, Read, Hansell, Dearborn and Shea.  Nays: None.  Motion carried unanimously.   



June 2015  Page 2 

  

 

 

Fire Department Matters 

1. Draft Minutes of Fire Commission Meeting of June 2, 2015: Roach reported the Commissioners reviewed the 

bylaws with approval occurring in July.  Kai asked about the status of the homeless encampment.  Roach 

responded he had met with the Sheriff and the person has vacated the area and the site has been cleaned.   

Roach noted he is looking for direction in regards to the change order for the fire engine.  The Board gave 

direction to have the change order paid in fiscal year 14-15.  Perry asked if the change order was unforeseen.  

Roach replied the District was aware a change order would occur and did budget for the amount.  Dearborn 

commented in engineering change orders are common.   

2. Fire Department – Activity Summary Report for May 2015: Roach reported it was a busy month.  The 

vegetation flyer has been printed and volunteers will be distributing the material.  Tomorrow he, DeMarta and 

Dreikosen will be meeting with a grant writer.   

3. Fire Department Chief Report: Roach reported Rudy Gelenter has stepped down from the Commission.  The 

Commission decided to drop to a five person Commission with two alternates; this will be written in the 

bylaws.   

4. Shared Services Update: Hansell stated this is a lopsided agreement, the call volume differential is substantial.  

Roach commented discussion needs to occur with the labor group in regards to the paramedic situation.  

5. Implementation of Vesting Schedule for Post-Retirement Health Benefits as Agreed Upon in 2012 MOU 

signed with Marinwood Professional Firefighters’ Local 1775: Dreikosen stated the District needs to engage 

in an actuarial study prior to adopting the vesting schedule; the one done in 2013 is outdated.  The cost for the 

two required studies is $14,300 and is budgeted for in the 2015/16 budget.  If the Board would like to add 

future miscellaneous hires to the vesting schedule study it will be an additional $7,000; for current employees 

it would be an additional $4,700.   Hansell stated the studies are required, but the MOU states they may done 

when feasible; additionally this had been tabled by the Union at their request.  The Union has requested the 

miscellaneous employees be included in the vesting schedule, but it is false to assume that the past study was 

to encompass the whole District.  Dearborn stated the Board should consider budgeting for a miscellaneous 

employee study to be done in FY 2016-17.   

M/s Hansell/ Dearborn to Implement Vesting Schedule for Post-Retirement Health Benefits as 

Agreed Upon in 2012 MOU signed with Marinwood Professional Firefighters’ Local 1775 as well as 

the study required by GASB 45.  Ayes: Kai, Read, Hansell, Dearborn and Shea.  Nays: None.  

Motion carried unanimously.   

 

Park and Recreation Matters 

1. Draft Minutes of Park and Recreation Commission Meeting of May 26, 2015: Nestel stated attendance 

continues to be an issue.  Dreikosen replied one member was ill, one was out of state and one had just given 

birth.  They all notified the Manager before the meeting and all Commissioners were aware.   

Kai commented his name was left off the attendance.  Sullivan apologized.   

Barnello questioned why the Recreation Department would want to “grow”.  Read replied she should direct 

that question to the Commission.   

2. Recreation and Maintenance Activity Reports: DeMarta reported summer camps begin on Monday with 

mandatory staff training to be held on Saturday and Sunday.  Registrations are strong.  The first Music in the 

Park is set for June 26th from 6-8pm.   

The nature trail in the main playground is complete; it looks great and staff has received many compliments.  

Staff continues to work on cleaning out the maintenance shed.  DeMarta stated he had also dealt with some 

fallen trees in the open space.  Dreikosen encouraged the Board members to visit the renovated section of the 

playground; it looks great.  Shea commented he had seen a positive change in the appearance of the whole 

District.   

 

New and Other Business 
       2.  SEED Solar Power Purchase Agreement Update: Dreikosen commented SolEd is finalizing their financing; 

an email was received today, but has yet to open it.  Hansell stated he will monitor the progress for the Board.  

Nestel stated the Board should be aware that if the material provided is not the same as what was specified in 

the contract there will be repercussions.   

Dearborn asked if there was an update regarding the pool equipment efficiencies.  DeMarta replied he had 

spoken with the installer today, we will be moving forward and the District was granted on-bill financing.   

3. Resolution 2015-04: Determining 2015-2016 Appropriations Limit on Tax Proceeds:  

M/s Kai/ Shea to approve Resolution 2015-04: Determining 2015-2016 Appropriations Limit on Tax 

Proceeds.  Ayes: Kai, Read, Hansell, Dearborn and Shea.  Nays: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 



June 2015  Page 3 

  

4. Resolution 2015-05: Proposing an election be held in its jurisdiction; requesting the Board of Supervisors to 

consolidate with any other election conducted on said date, and requesting election services by the Marin 

County Elections Department: 

M/s Shea/ Dearborn to approve Resolution 2015-05: Proposing an election be held in its jurisdiction; 

requesting the Board of Supervisors to consolidate with any other election conducted on said date, 

and requesting election services by the Marin County Elections Department.  Ayes: Kai, Read, 

Hansell, Dearborn and Shea.  Nays: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 

5. Requests for Future Meeting Agenda Items:  

Roach requested GAN Limit approval.   

Dearborn requested an update on the PG&E efficiencies.   

Barnello requested a LAFCO update.  Read replied Kai will update the Board on LAFCO when applicable; as 

of now there are no new updates.   

 

Recognitions and Board Member Items of Interest 

Dreikosen noted the District had just completed a Cal PERS audit; the auditor was in house for four days.  During the 

exit interview she had given the District good marks and noted she had never seen a part-time employee (Sullivan) so 

organized and responsible.   

Dearborn offered a thank you to all staff; they work hard and it is much appreciated.  

Hansell stated he would like to give kudos to Dreikosen; he had done a great job in regards to the fact-finding situation.   

The meeting was adjourned at 9:15PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Carolyn Sullivan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



June 2015  Page 4 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



June 2015  Page 5 

  

 



June 2015  Page 6 

  

 



June 2015  Page 7 

  

 



June 2015  Page 8 

  

 



June 2015  Page 9 

  

 



June 2015  Page 10 

  

 



June 2015  Page 11 

  

 



June 2015  Page 12 

  

 



June 2015  Page 13 

  

 



June 2015  Page 14 

  

 



June 2015  Page 15 

  

 



June 2015  Page 16 

  

 



June 2015  Page 17 

  

 



June 2015  Page 18 

  

 



June 2015  Page 19 

  

 



June 2015  Page 20 

  

 


